
PO Box 370, 7330 Thornapple River Drive SE, Ada, MI  49301   P: 616 676-9191   F: 616 676-5870   
www.adatownshipmi.com 

 
   
  
  
 

ADA TOWNSHIP DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MONDAY, AUGUST 13, 2018 MEETING, 8:00 A.M. 
ADA TOWNSHIP OFFICES, 7330 THORNAPPLE RIVER DR. SE 

ADA, MICHIGAN 
  

AGENDA 
  

I. Call to Order/Roll Call  
 

II. Approval of Agenda 
 

III. Approval of Minutes of July 9 meeting. 
 
IV. Approval of Payables 

a. deCo Design Studio 7/20/18 Invoice, Banner Design Services 
 

V. Approval of Farmers Market Vendor Reimbursement 
 

VI. Discussion of Redevelopment Area Liquor License Approval Process 
 

VII. Parking Count Analysis 
 

VIII. Reports and Communications 
a. Letters from Business Owners 
b. Comments from Citizens Council 
c. Status of Riverfront Park Construction 
d. Community Center/Library Building Update 
e. TIF Reform Legislation 
f. DDA Financial Report, 7/31/18 

 
IX. Board Member Comment 

 
X. Public Comment  

 
XI. Adjournment 

 



DRA DRAFT 
            

ADA TOWNSHIP DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MINUTES OF THE JULY 9, 2018 MEETING 
ADA, MICHIGAN 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
The meeting was called to order at 8:00 a.m. by Chairperson, Bowersox. 
 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  Terry Bowersox, George Haga, Bryan Harrison, Margaret Idema, 
Devin Norman, Walt VanderWulp, Dawn Marie Coe, Justin Knapp, Ted Wright 
BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT:  
STAFF PRESENT: Jim Ferro, Planning Director, Brian Hilbrands, DDA Coordinator, Adina 
Winczewski, Administrative Assistant 
PUBLIC PRESENT: Kristen Wildes, Ada Historical Society 
 

II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
It was moved by Harrison, seconded by Idema to approve the agenda as presented. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF JUNE 11 MEETING 

 
Wright stated, referring to the greenspace study in Board Comments within the June 11th meeting 
minutes, he feels the DDA has not done due diligence in communicating how important the Headley 
greenspace really is and feels there may not be enough community feedback.  Ferro stated the online map 
tool is not the only method being used for getting public input.  There will be additional public input 
methods used. 
 
Haga made a point of order and stated this discussion can continue at the end of the meeting.  
 
It was moved by Harrison, seconded by Haga, to approve the minutes of the June 11th meeting as 
presented. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
IV. APPROVAL OF PAYABLES 

 
It was moved by Norman, seconded by Wright, to approve payment of the 6/15/18 invoice from Hopkins 
Fundraising Consulting for capital campaign services in the amount of $5,800. 
 
Motion passed unanimously.  
 

V. APPROVAL OF BANNER PURCHASE FOR VILLAGE LIGHT POSTS  
 
It was moved by Norman, seconded by VanderWulp to approve purchasing 82 new Village banners 
through Gilson Graphics, at a cost of $1,665. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
 
 



Ada Township DDA Board 
Minutes of the July 9, 2018, 2018 Meeting 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 
 
VI. REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

 
a. Status of Riverfront Park Construction 

 
Ferro stated phase 1 of the project is nearly completed.  The restroom building is not yet open.  
Consumers Energy needs to connect electrical service.  Phase 2 of the project which includes 
work done close to the river and major riverbank restoration in a few areas is not starting on time 
due to a revised permit modification process with the DEQ.  Norman asked if phase 2 will be 
finished this year.  Ferro stated it would.  

 
b. Community Center/Library Building Update 

 
Ferro stated the Building Committee and Architectural team will be meeting on July 19th.  On 
July 23rd there will be a presentation to the Ada Township Board of Trustees.  There will also be 
an evening meeting for community input sometime during the week of July 23rd.  
 
 

c. Flyer for Green Space Needs Assessment  
 
Ferro stated the survey at https://communityremarks.com/adatownship/ has a section for the 
Headley Street Greenspace.  Idema stated she shares Wright’s concern that we really need to 
promote and get community feedback on greenspace.  
 
Idema asked about purchasing the Headley greenspace from Amway.  Ferro stated that before a 
decision is made about the future of that property, GELD has requested the Township to get 
public input about greenspace needs from the entire community, not just the village.  
 
Haga stated we need to have the survey promoted on Facebook.  
 
Wright stated he is concerned how years ago the public wanted greenspace within the DDA 
district.  Now, greenspace is being considered Ada wide. 
 
Harrison stated the DDA and Township Board should go back to GELD with a vision for the 
Headley property; a statement of how the property will be used.  
 
Norman asked if the DDA can get a copy of the agreement with GELD.  Hilbrands stated he will 
get a copy of the agreement between Ada Township and GELD to the DDA.  
 
Harrison asked how the flyer is being distributed.  Ferro stated it is being sent with the summer 
tax bills to residents.     

 
d. Letter from Farmer’s Market Vendor 

 
Board discussed disappointment in the cancelation of the Farmer’s Market on July 3rd.  Bowersox 
stated someone needs to be held responsible for canceling the Farmer’s Market without 
discussing it first with the DDA. Haga stated he will discuss the issue with the Clerk.  
 
Bowersox stated the DDA needs to make the Market Manager aware that any changes made to 
the Farmer’s Market will be communicated through the DDA.   
 

https://communityremarks.com/adatownship/


Ada Township DDA Board 
Minutes of the July 9, 2018, 2018 Meeting 
Page 3 of 3 

 
Wright stated the DDA needs to immediately respond to all the vendors to let them know we are 
looking into this and taking ownership. 
 
Hilbrands stated he will draft a letter on behalf of the DDA to the vendors. 
 
Haga suggested inviting the Market Manager to the next DDA meeting to provide an update.  

 
e. Letter from Fundraising Consultant Keith Hopkins  

 
Hilbrands expressed his appreciation of Keith Hopkins’ letter and stated it has been a pleasure 
working with him. With his support, they have exceeded their $7 million fundraising goal, 
currently around $7.1 million.   

 
f. DDA Financial Report, 6/30/18 

 
Hilbrands reviewed the Financial Report memo presented in the board packet.  
 

VII. BOARD MEMBER COMMENT 
 
Idema stated she would like the DDA to get a report on how the downtown retailers are doing.  
Knapp agreed and stated he’s hearing that vendors care about two main things; consistency in 
brands and foot traffic.  Norman suggested giving the business owners a quick survey to fill out 
on a monthly basis to get an idea of how business is doing.  
 
Harrison suggested inviting three different business owners to come to the DDA board meetings 
each month.  It would be a way to get their likes and dislikes and to find out what they would like 
to see different. 
 
VanderWulp recommended an article in the current issue of Outside Magazine called America’s 
Smartest Towns. 
 
VanderWulp left the meeting at 9:03. 
 
Coe stated that whatever the DDA decides to do about retailers going forward, a representative of 
the Ada Business Association should be involved or at least hear the feedback.  Hilbrands stated 
he attends all the ABA meetings and will reach out to the Executive Director, Ashley Jolman. 

 
   

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
IX. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:06 am. 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Devin Norman, Secretary 





MEMORANDUM 
 

Date: 8/06/18 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Ada Township DDA Board 
FROM: Brian Hilbrands, DDA Coordinator 
RE:  Refund for Farmers’ Market Vendors 
 
Staff were asked to determine what the financial impact would be of providing refunds to 
Farmers’ Market vendors, relating to the cancelled Market day on July 3rd. Our Market Manager 
Jennie Mac Anaspie indicated that there are 20 seasonal vendors, and they pay $15 per visit 
during the high season. If the DDA was to compensate vendors for the missed Market day it 
would total $300, or $600 if the DDA compensates for two Market days. 
 
The total revenues budgeted for the 2018 Market Season are $11,600, while the total 
expenditures are $11,470, for an expected increase in fund balance of $130. If the DDA decides 
to refund for one missed Market day, that will result in an expected decrease in fund balance of 
$170, while a refund of two market days will result in an expected decrease of $470. The 
Farmers’ Market currently projects to have a fund balance of $13,999.20 after the 2018 Market 
Season. 
 



From: Ada Farmers" Market
To: Brian Hilbrands
Cc: Jim Ferro; Terry Bowersox (terrysox@tlbfinancial.com)
Subject: Re: DDA Letter to Farmers Market Vendors
Date: Wednesday, July 11, 2018 11:22:06 AM

Thanks, Brian.  I'll get this out this morning.

Regarding the fees, there are two levels; one for the seasonal vendors, who pay a lump sum for
their booth, and the daily vendors, who pay $25 per ad hoc visit.  For the latter, it's hard to say
who would or would not have been there.  I had not yet heard from those who were mulling
attendance before the holiday.  My suggestion would be to simply have the letter stand as a
recognition of the inconvenience for this group.

As for the seasonals, the rate during the high season is $15. I can have this list drawn up and
sent to whoever would be appropriate at the township for refunds.

Overall, there are really only a few vendors who would have had an impact as large as Crane
Dance.  Mary shared it was a loss to them in particular of a couple grand.  The others who
would have had similar levels of disrupted revenue are Visser and DNS Fish.  Sugar
Momma's, Julie's Pies,  L & L Bull, Frozen Creek, and Country Gardens are likely in the 750 -
1k range for receipts based on an educated guess of their traffic and product pricing.  The rest
fall under that $750 threshold.

Crane Dance is the only one who reached out.  Visser was not terribly upset, as she shared
with me - unasked - that it gave her time to spend with her first newborn grandchild.  The only
other who would have communicated their displeasure, Frozen Creek, said nothing.  

Here are my thoughts.  Refunding the missed market date would be equitable and go a long
way in building goodwill.  I would also consider a somewhat larger amount in Crane Dance's
case.  I do not believe she expects to have the DDA replace what was lost based on your
communication with her yesterday.  However, a gesture somewhere around $200 would
acknowledge both her frustration and her commitment to the market. I would cover the cost of
their hired hand who works on the farm so she can prep for and attend the market.  Granted,
equitability and/or discretion would be a factor, so perhaps there is another option available. 

Again, these are my suggestions and I'd be willing to chat more about what would work best
for both the DDA and the vendors.  Let me know your thoughts on this and thanks for quickly
responding to the situation.

Best,

Jennie Mac Anaspie 

Jennie Mac Anaspie

AFM Market Master
616-676-9191 x45
adafarmersmarket.com

mailto:bhilbrands@adatownshipmi.com
mailto:jferro@adatownshipmi.com
mailto:terrysox@tlbfinancial.com
http://adafarmersmarket.com/


MEMORANDUM 
 

Date: 8/8/18 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Ada Township DDA Board 
FROM: Brian Hilbrands, DDA Coordinator 
RE:  Redevelopment Area Liquor License Approval Process 
 
The Michigan Liquor Control Commission allows businesses located in a development district to 
apply for a liquor license outside of the typical quota licenses allowed in cities, villages and 
Townships. Currently, all of the quota licenses for Ada Township are in use. The Commission 
requires a supporting resolution to be passed by the local government’s legislative body. The 
state law also requires the Commission to determine that the following requirements are satisfied 
in order for a license to be issued: 
 

• Either have expended at least $75,000 for the rehabilitation or restoration of the building 
over the previous 5 years, or commit a capital investment of at least $75,000 that will be 
expended for the building before the license is issued. 

• Acquire an affidavit from the Township assessor demonstrating a total investment within 
the development district of at least $200,000 over the previous 5 years. 

• Be engaged in dining, entertainment, or recreation, be open to the general public, and 
have a seating capacity of at least 25 persons. 

• Demonstrate to the Liquor Control Commission that they attempted to purchase a quota 
license within the Township, and that one was not readily available. 

 
 Some municipalities also have their DDA make a recommendation to their legislative body, but 
this recommendation is not required by the Commission. The Township has received several 
inquiries regarding the availability of redevelopment area liquor licenses in Ada Township. 
 
There are a number of ways that the Township could go about handling redevelopment area 
liquor license applications. 
 

1. Have staff review the application and present it to the Township Board along with a 
resolution of support that will be given to the Liquor Control Commission. 

2. Have staff review the application and present it to the DDA for a recommendation before 
bringing it to the Township Board along with a resolution of support. 

3. Adopt a policy where added criteria must be met by the applicant before the resolution 
can be adopted. Part of this policy can require a recommendation be given by the DDA 
Board. 

 



Sending the application directly to the Township Board allows for a faster process and passing of 
a resolution. This is the process for a typical liquor license. An example memo from Cascade 
Township is attached. 
 
Adopting a policy provides the Township with more control over the application, as they can 
require additional criteria be met beyond what is required in the Act. An example policy from 
Northfield Township and the City of Petoskey are attached. Example of additional criteria 
required include: 
 

• Demonstrating how the issuance of a license would prevent further deterioration in the 
Development District and promote economic growth. 

• Density of similar establishments. 
• Document a real property interest within the development district. 
• Introduction of an application fee. 
• Limit on the hours that alcohol can be served. 
• Limit on the number of redevelopment area liquor licenses that can be approved. 

 
Staff are asking the DDA Board to consider if it wants to become involved in the redevelopment 
area liquor license approval process.  
 







































 



 
 
 
 

 
 



 
 
 
 

 









Executive Summary
The Architect issued the first programming document with an overall square footage need of 27,615 SF (low) to 29,917 SF (high).  The 

natural design progression may reduce this square footage closer to the target of 24,000 SF to help maintain the budget. The Architect's 
Visioning Report documents the design should focus on “Special” rather than “Space.” A large facility was not a goal of the Building 

Committee but rather designing around the priorities of creating connections, community hub, iconic, functional and efficient that invokes 
feelings of Inviting, Wow, and Friendly yet being Functional, Accessible and Busy. 

Progress This Period

July 2018

• Design Workshop and Programming Review completed on 7/19/18 with 

Building Committee.

• Architect issued Programming Report 7/20/18.

• Architect gave design update at 7/23/18 Ada Township Board meeting. 

• Conducted building tour with Building Committee and Architect at the 

East Grand Rapids branch library on 7/23/18.

• Soil borings completed 8/1/18 by MTC.

Planned For Next Period

Milestone Status Target Date

Engage Architect Complete 5/14/18

Engage Construction Manager Complete 6/11/18

Complete Design In Progress 12/10/18

Start Construction February 2019

Complete Construction February 2020

Begin Operations March 2020

Key Issues / Risks / Decisions Key Milestone Status

August 2018

• Erhardt Construction to issue construction estimate based on initial 29,917 

SF. Estimate should help quantify the variance between funding and 

estimate.

• Design Workshop scheduled for 8/20/18 with the Building Committee. 

• Architect to present design/programming progress at the 8/27/18 Ada 

Township Board meeting. 

1. Design: Programming document issued that captures the size, needs and 

functions of the community center and library.  Initial square footage of 

29, 917 is greater than anticipated and needs to be reduced to maintain 

budget. Architect to review with KDL and Ada Township.

2. Due Diligence: Soil borings completed. Need to complete Geotech report 

to assist in design of building’s foundation.

3. Budget: Approximately $9,939,537 of funding is available per Ada Twp. 

Budget must be maintained throughout the design process.

Ada TownshipAda TownshipAda TownshipAda Township
Amy Van Andel Library & Community Center

06-AUG-18



MEMORANDUM 
 

Date: 7/25/18 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Ada Township DDA Board 
FROM: Brian Hilbrands, DDA Coordinator 
RE:  TIF Reform Legislation 
 
In March, the governor signed PA 57 of 2018 known as the “Recodified Tax Increment Finance 
Authority Act”. Act 57 is meant to create greater transparency in the way tax increment entities 
(such as DDAs) operate by creating new requirements for annual reporting and publication of 
certain required information. 
 
DDAs are new required to publish the following information on a webpage: 
 

• Board meeting minutes 
• Annual budgets and audits 
• Currently adopted development and TIF plans 
• Current listing of authority staff with contact information 
• Listing of current contracts 
• An updated synopsis of activities of the authority 

 
This information must be provided within 180 days following the close of the DDA’s fiscal year 
after January 1, 2019. For the Ada Township DDA, this deadline is September 30, 2019. 
 
Act 57 also requires that DDAs hold at least two informational meetings each year on the 
authority’s activities and provide notice of the meetings to affected taxing jurisdictions. These 
meetings will need to be included in the DDA’s 2019 meeting schedule. 
 
Finally, Act 57 requires that DDAs annually file the following information with the Department 
of Treasury: 
 

• Amendments to existing development and TIF plans 
• Authority fund balances 
• TIF revenues generated and affected taxing jurisdictions 
• Initial and current assessed values of the authority’s district 

 
Failure to report as required will result in the DDA being precluded from capturing any TIF 
revenues that are in excess of amounts necessary to pay bonded indebtedness. 
 
The provisions of Act 57 become effective January 1, 2019. 







MEMORANDUM 
 

Date: 8/6/18 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Ada Township DDA Board 
FROM: Brian Hilbrands, DDA Coordinator 
RE:  Financial Report, 7/31/18 
 
Significant DDA financial activity during July included the following: 
 

• $560.00 in operating supplies/services includes payment to Sanisweep Inc. for street 
sweeping services. 

 
With respect to the Farmers’ Market, the Market has net positive income to date of $4,717.46 for 
the 2018 season. Revenues to date total $7,780.00. 









General Ledger 
No.

Date Description Revenue Expenditure Balance Net Income 
from 1/31/18

Total Revenues and Expenditures, 4/1/17 to 1/31/18 $11,115.00 $9,056.32 $13,869.20
248.170.801 2/06/18 Market Master Services - January, 2018 $105.00 $13,764.20 -$105.00
248.170.740 3/09/18 Operating Supplies - Internet Services $68.13 $13,696.07 -$173.13
248.170.801 3/15/18 Market Master Services - February, 2018 $150.00 $13,546.07 -$323.13
248.170.740 3/23/18 Operating Supplies - Petty Cash Reimbursement $31.43 $13,514.64 -$354.56
248.170.740 3/31/18 Operating Supplies - Supply Reimbursements $108.09 $13,406.55 -$462.65
248.170.740 3/31/18 Supplies, General, Farmers Market, Asses $4.55 $13,402.00 -$467.20
248.170.740 3/31/18 Operating Supplies - Internet Services $21.57 $13,380.43 -$488.77
248.170.801 3/31/18 Market Master Services - March, 2018 $450.00 $12,930.43 -$938.77
248.028.694 4/09/18 Vendor Registration Fees $255.00 $13,185.43 -$683.77
248.028.694 4/18/18 Vendor Registration Fees $815.00 $14,000.43 $131.23
248.028.694 4/20/18 Vendor Registration Fees $1,220.00 $15,220.43 $1,351.23
248.028.694 5/01/18 Vendor Registration Fees $560.00 $15,780.43 $1,911.23
248.170.801 5/08/18 Market Master Services - April, 2018 $600.00 $15,180.43 $1,311.23
248.028.694 5/14/18 Vendor Registration Fees $1,885.00 $17,065.43 $3,196.23
248.028.694 5/23/18 Vendor Registration Fees $510.00 $17,575.43 $3,706.23
248.028.694 5/31/18 Vendor Registration Fees $305.00 $17,880.43 $4,011.23
248.170.801 6/05/18 Market Master Services - May, 2018 $750.00 $17,130.43 $3,261.23
248.170.740 6/05/18 Operating Supplies - Petty Cash Reimbursement $200.00 $16,930.43 $3,061.23
248.170.740 6/05/18 Operating Supplies - Supply Reimbursements $150.00 $16,780.43 $2,911.23
248.170.740 6/06/18 Operating Supplies - Farmers Market Tent Repair $143.92 $16,636.51 $2,767.31
248.028.694 6/07/18 Vendor Registration Fees $535.00 $17,171.51 $3,302.31
248.028.694 6/08/18 Vendor Registration Fees $355.00 $17,526.51 $3,657.31
248.028.694 6/11/18 Vendor Registration Fees $255.00 $17,781.51 $3,912.31
248.028.694 6/19/18 Vendor Registration Fees $255.00 $18,036.51 $4,167.31
248.028.694 6/21/18 Vendor Registration Fees $75.00 $18,111.51 $4,242.31
248.028.694 6/27/18 Vendor Registration Fees $100.00 $18,211.51 $4,342.31
248.170.740 6/29/18 Operating Supplies - Petty Cash Reimbursement $107.88 $18,103.63 $4,234.43
248.028.694 7/11/18 Vendor Registration Fees $200.00 $18,303.63 $4,434.43
248.170.740 7/11/18 Operating Supplies - Farmers' Market Banners $171.97 $18,131.66 $4,262.46
248.028.694 7/18/18 Vendor Registration Fees $330.00 $18,461.66 $4,592.46
248.028.694 7/25/18 Vendor Registration Fees $125.00 $18,586.66 $4,717.46

Total, 2018 Season, beginning 2/1/18 $7,780.00 $3,062.54 $4,717.46

Total, Fiscal YTD, beginning 4/1/18 $7,780.00 $2,123.77 $5,656.23

ADA FARMERS' MARKET
2018 SEASON REVENUE, EXPENSE AND NET INCOME

07/31/18


	DDA Financial Report - 7-31-18.pdf
	Farmers Market Financial Report - 7-31-18.pdf
	2018 Season Revenue Expense and Fund Balance-07-31-18.pdf
	2018






